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October 21, 2010 
 
 
To Board President Wyffels and 

Members of the Board of Directors 

of Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

 
 

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue for the 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The responsibility for the completeness, fairness, and accuracy of the data 

presented and all accompanying disclosures rests with the District. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 

representations, the District’s management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 

designed both to protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse; and to compile sufficient reliable 

information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their 

benefits, the District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, 

rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As 

management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in 

all material respects. 

 
The District is a special district established to provide a full range of fire protection and emergency response 

services to its citizens. This report has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America and follows guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers 

Association of the United States and Canada. 

 

State of Oregon Revised Statutes, ORS 297.405 to 297.555, require an annual audit of the fiscal affairs of the 

District by independent public accountants selected by the Board of Directors. This requirement has been complied 

with and the auditor's opinion has been included at the front of the financial section of this report. 

 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides 

a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.  MD&A complements this letter of 

transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

 

 

Committed to Creating Safer Communities through Prevention, Preparedness, and Effective Emergency Response 
www.tvfr.com

North Operating Center 
20665 SW Blanton Street 
Aloha, Oregon 
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503‐649‐8577 
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and Central Operating Center 
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Tualatin, Oregon 
97062‐8350 
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Training Center
12400 SW Tonquin Road 
Sherwood, Oregon 
97140‐9734 
503‐259‐1600 
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The Reporting Entity and Its Services 

The District operates under Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 478 as a separate municipal corporation and is 

managed by a Board of Directors comprised of a President and four Directors including a Vice-President and a  

 

Secretary-Treasurer. The Board hires a Fire Chief to manage the day-to-day operations of the District. The 

governing Board appoints members of the community to serve on boards and commissions, which include the 

Budget Committee and the Civil Service Commission. 

 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue, a Rural Fire 

Protection District, was formed in 1989, through the 

legal merger of Washington County Fire Protection 

District No. 1 and Tualatin Rural Fire Protection 

District. Since that time, the District has expanded 

through the mergers of two additional fire districts, 

Multnomah County Rural Fire Protection District 

Nos. 4 and 20, and the annexation of the Valley 

View Water District on July 1, 1995. The District 

continued to grow by the annexation of the City of 

Beaverton to the District’s service territory effective 

July 1, 1996. The most recent annexation was the 

City of West Linn, which was legally annexed on 

July 1, 2004, after the culmination of six years of 

contracted services by the District for city residents. 
 
The District currently operates 21 career and 

volunteer fire stations with a complement of fire 

engines, ladder trucks, aerial pumpers, hazardous 

materials response units, technical rescue units, 

one heavy CBRNE unit, water tenders, brush rigs, 

and several other pieces of equipment, including medics, response cars, water rescue units, a mobile command 

unit, and an additional fleet utilized to supplement response needs. District employees - approximately 437 in 

2010 - were supplemented by approximately 70 volunteer firefighters.  

 
The District has been and continues to be focused on providing the taxpayers the highest level of service in an 

efficient and effective operation. The District continues to implement continuing operational improvements in 

order to accomplish its strategic goals.   
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The District serves northeast Washington County, northwest Clackamas County, and the western edge of 

Multnomah County. The District is a special service district supported by the property owners within its 

boundaries. 

 

The District serves a population of an estimated 440,339 people. Assessed valuation continues to grow and to 

provide additional tax revenue. The District’s funding is based upon a permanent tax rate of $1.5252 levied on 

assessed valuation.  Increases in assessed valuation result in increased tax revenue to the District. Assessed 

valuation increased from $38.8 billion in 2008-09 to approximately $40.3 billion in the 2009-10 fiscal year.  In 

addition, the District depends upon an additional local option levy of 25 cents per thousand to supplement the 

permanent levy rate.  The District’s voters firmly supported the third renewal of the 25 cent levy for an additional 

five years at the November 2008 election. This levy will provide funding for operations through June 30, 2015.  

 
Capital funding for the next several years will continue to be provided from a series of general obligation bond 

sales.  The authority to issue up to $77.5 million of bonds was strongly supported by our voters at the November 

2006 election to provide funding for new stations, significant seismic reconstruction of existing stations, a 

command center, and for emergency response apparatus throughout the District. The District has sold a total of 

$49.5 million in three issuances. A fourth issuance is planned for 2011.  
 
The area served, which includes the cities of Beaverton, Durham, King City, Rivergrove, Tigard, Tualatin, 

Sherwood, West Linn, and Wilsonville, lies within one of the fastest growing regions of the state. The District is an 

area encompassing densely populated suburbs, rural farmlands, retail and commercial establishments, and growing 

industrial complexes.  

 
Fire stations are strategically placed throughout the District to protect property and the District population. The 

District utilizes defined response time standards, projected population densities, and urban growth, as well as actual 

and planned traffic conditions to determine the best station sites to optimize response times. 

 
As a result of the high quality of services provided, training standards, equipment, staffing, and related support 

functions, the District is among the leaders in the State of Oregon in obtaining a favorable insurance classification, 

class 2, according to the standards set forth by the Insurance Services Office, Inc. To the property owner in the 

District, this classification results in very low premium rates for fire insurance. 

 
The District is a multi-service district with services and programs tailored to meet the needs of the community. The 

District is committed to creating safer communities through education, prevention, preparedness and emergency 

response.  Emergency response services include fire suppression, emergency medical services, water dive, high 

angle, and heavy rescue. For several years, the District has served as a Regional Hazardous Material Response 

provider for the State of Oregon with a service response area ranging from the City of Portland boundary on the 
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east to the Pacific Ocean on the west and from the District's northern boundary in Multnomah County southerly to 

Marion County. 

 
The District’s Integrated Operations staff is dedicated to meeting all of the state mandates regarding fire 

investigations, commercial and retail occupancy inspections, and educating District citizens. To deal with 

emergencies, both fire and medical, the District staffs a team of professional firefighters and paramedics 24-hours a 

day with skills and equipment necessary to deal with a wide variety of emergencies. Over half of the District’s 

professional firefighters are certified as Advanced Life Support paramedics, while 100% of the remaining fire 

suppression personnel are certified at either the Basic or Intermediate Emergency Medical Technician life support 

levels. Under the guidance of physician advisors, emergency medical service personnel (all of whom are 

firefighters) maintain a high skill level through several specialized programs. 

 
Modern training facilities, including a six-story training tower, a burn building for live fire training, a 19-acre 

training center, and a live TV studio and media center, provide personnel with constant training to keep their skills 

at the highest level. The TVF&R Training Center facility, which was constructed in several phases using public 

funding and private donations, provides advanced training opportunities in flammable liquids and gases and usage 

of live props, including a tanker truck, a vehicle driving course, propane rail cars, a bridge and excavation tunnels. 

The Training Center provides private businesses, District employees, and other customers a site to train for actual 

emergency situations and to meet federally mandated training requirements. The Training Center's facility and 

grounds are used for the many intensive District training operations, as well as District employer taxpayers 

requiring specialized training.  

 
Economic Condition and Outlook  

The District, through its broad geographic base, serves a developing and growing part of Oregon's economic base. 

The annual growth in the District’s assessed valuation and market value of protected property each year is one 

indication of the growth in both industrial and residential areas. Economic and regional population forecasts 

continue to project the area’s continued growth and development. Assessed valuation of existing property is limited 

to three percent increases a year; and growth in the District’s assessed valuation is largely expected to come from 

legally allowed increases in assessed valuation, which is only 64% of market value. For 2009-10, the assessed 

value of the District grew 3.7% to $40.3 billion, although market value decreased to $62.5 billion from almost 

$67.0 billion in 2009.  While it may be several years before new development and other increases to market value 

occur, the legally allowed increase in assessed value of 3% per year is expected to provide a stable funding source 

for the District. 

 
The District’s population is expected to continue to grow in the next 20 years. We are working proactively and 

cooperatively with other governments and regional planning groups to ensure continued ability to serve this future 

population. This includes participating in neighborhood and street planning, emergency access and road 
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construction planning processes, as well as evaluating and working across jurisdictional boundaries to ensure 

closest force response to population centers regardless of where city and county boundary lines fall 

 

This area serves as the home to internationally recognized companies such as Nike, Mentor Graphics, In Focus, and 

Tektronix. Top metropolitan area employers include Intel, Fred Meyer, Inc., Qwest Communications International, 

Inc., Portland General Electric, IBM, Kaiser Permanente, Providence Health System, U.S. Bank,  and Maxim 

Integrated Products, among others. The area has attracted significant retail and wholesale marketers such as Costco 

Wholesale Clubs, Dayton-Hudson Stores, and Rite-Aid Drug Stores; and companies such as Pacific Realty 

Associates have developed acres of land adjacent to the Sunset Highway. Nike’s world headquarters complex 

houses thousands of employees in office buildings bordering a seven-acre manmade lake and five acres of 

wetlands. Intel has continued to invest in multi-million dollar facility expansions to manufacture state-of-the-art 

computer chips, largely in the neighboring City of Hillsboro. 

 
Major Initiatives  
 

For the Year and For the Future 

In fiscal year 2010, the District focused on two significant areas.  The station construction and project management 

of the capital projects being funded through the bond program impacts almost every division within the District.  

Our combined efforts are required in order to manage the projects and build fire stations and purchase apparatus 

that will provide taxpayers the best service and value for the next 20 years.  We have reviewed our standardized 

station designs to incorporate seismic structural improvements, reduce overall square footage of future bond 

projects, and included environmental considerations. The District’s efforts in 2010 have been toward the seismic 

reconstruction of three fire stations and the District’s Command and Business Operation Center. In addition, land 

for fire station relocations for response coverage improvements was identified and negotiations completed for the 

purchase completion in fiscal year 2011. 

 
Secondly, the District has continued to implement the replacement of the financial and other support division 

software systems with an enterprise resource planning system that integrates most of the business operations of the 

District. The implementation of this project was started in 2009 with financial systems. The project will continue 

through the 2010-11 fiscal year for work orders, human resources and payroll, among other modules. The project is 

on time and on budget through the dedicated efforts of the project team. 

 
Department Service Efforts and Accomplishments 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, all divisions and departments of the District contributed toward the 

accomplishments of our 2010 strategic goals. These goals, as outlined in our Strategic Plan are: 
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 Reduce the number and severity of emergency incidents. 

 Increase citizens’ participation in their safety and preparedness, and knowledge and support of the District’s 

services. 

 Enhance preparedness for catastrophic and unforeseen events. 

 Ensure the health and safety of all employees and volunteers. 

 Develop and enhance a workforce that honors and respects our individual and group differences and reflects 

the community we serve. 

 Promote craftsmanship, innovation, and excellence throughout the organization. 

 Leverage use of existing resources for the greatest community good. 

 Ensure ongoing financial and business operations stability and predictability. 

 
Efforts during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, as a result of these goals, included: 

 
 Reconstruction of Stations 53, 58, and 59 was largely completed in 2010. 

 Seismic reinforcement and improvements were made to the Command and Business Operating Center. 

 Sites for two fire stations were identified and purchases negotiated. 

 Purchase and replacement of emergency fire apparatus with bond proceeds continued. 

 
Other Information 

Awards 
 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue for its Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This was the 22nd consecutive year the District has 

received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District published an 

easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report satisfied both 

accounting principles generally accepted, in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements. 

 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive 

annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are 

submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

 
In addition, the District also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual 

appropriated budget for the budget year ended June 30, 2010. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget 

Presentation Award, the District's budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including 

policy documentation, financial planning and organization. This was the 22nd year the District received the award. 
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010 

 
 
As management of Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (the District), we offer readers of the District’s financial 

statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended 

June 30, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 

information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages three through nine of 

this report.   

 
Financial Highlights 
 
 

• In the government-wide financial statements, the assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at 

June 30, 2010 by $79,856,381. Of this amount, $27,397,380 represents the District’s investment in 

capital assets, net of related debt, $1,207,841 is restricted for debt service, $10,852,844 is 

restricted for capital projects, and the balance of $40,398,316 will be used to meet the District’s 

ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

• The District’s total net assets increased by $3,136,459 for the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Unrestricted net assets increased by $13,211,997, net assets invested in capital assets increased by 

$561,309, restricted net assets restricted for debt service increased by $663,422, and restricted net 

assets for capital projects decreased by $11,300,269.   

 
• As of June 30, 2010, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 

$65,400,806, a decrease of $7,922,980 in comparison with the prior year. Planned expenditures on 

projects funded through Capital Projects Fund resulted in an $11,300,269 reduction in ending fund 

balance of the Capital Projects offset by increases of $1,149,417 in the General Fund and 

$2,227,872 in non-major funds. 

 

• At June 30, 2010, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $37,979,877 or 60 percent of 

total General Fund expenditures. This fund balance percentage reflects the achievement of District 

policy of maintaining five months of budgeted operating expenditures as ending fund balance each 

year. This policy is in place because the majority of District revenue is provided from property 

taxes, which are not received until the end of the fifth month of each succeeding fiscal year.  

Before the District adds permanent positions, the District attempts to build fund balance to sustain 

payroll during subsequent years prior to receipt of property tax revenue. 
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• The District’s total debt decreased by $2,135,122 during the current fiscal year. This was due to 

principal and interest payments on the District’s outstanding bond issues. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 

statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-

wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. The 

government-wide and fund financial statements are combined for presentation purposes. This report also 

contains required supplementary information and other supplemental information in addition to the basic 

financial statements themselves. 

 
Government-wide financial statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 

District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business, and include the Statement of Net Assets 

and the Statement of Activities. 

 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the 

difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve 

as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 

 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed during the 

most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 

the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 

in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 

taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

 

In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are shown in one category; 

governmental activities. The governmental activities of the District include general government and public 

safety, and are principally supported by property taxes and charges for services. 

 

The combined government-wide and governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 31 

through 33 of this report. 
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Fund financial statements 
 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on its 

most significant or “major” funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 

over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state 

and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 

legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental 

funds, internal service fund, and fiduciary funds. 

 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 

government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial information focuses on near-term 

inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the 

end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing 

requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 

so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. 

Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balances are reconciled to the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities in the 

combined presentation. 

 

The District maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 

governmental funds Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 

Balances for the General Fund and Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data 

from the other seven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual 

fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided as Supplemental Information. 

 

Additionally, the District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds as required by Oregon budget 

law. Budgetary comparison statements/schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance elsewhere 

in this report. 
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Internal service fund. The District maintains one internal service fund, the Insurance Fund, which is a 

proprietary fund type. This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources used for payment of claims and 

losses less than deductible limits for insurance coverage. Because this fund predominately benefits 

governmental functions, it has been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide 

financial statements. 

 

The basic internal service fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 38 of this report. 

 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 

the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 

resources of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs. The accounting basis 

used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for internal service funds.  The basic fiduciary fund 

financial statements can be found on pages 39 and 40 of this report. 

 

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 

to a full understanding of the data provided in the combined government-wide and fund financial 

statements.  The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 41 through 64 of this report. 

 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 

also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District’s progress in funding its 

obligation to provide pension benefits to past employees and volunteer firefighters. Required 

supplementary information can be found on page 67 of this report. 

 

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 71 through 86 of this 

report. The Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Outstanding Balances can be found on page 87 of 

this report. 

 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. 

In the case of the District, assets exceed liabilities by $79,856,381 at June 30, 2010. A significant portion 

of the District’s net assets (34 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings and 

improvements, fire apparatus, and furniture and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those 
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assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 

consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The remaining assets consist mainly of 

cash and cash equivalents, investments, and property taxes receivable, which are used to meet the District’s 

ongoing obligations to its citizens. 

Governmental Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

from
Net Assets 2010 2009 Fiscal 2009

Current and other assets 77,384,668$      82,078,734$      (4,694,066)$        

Capital assets 61,769,816        52,043,360        9,726,456           

     Total assets 139,154,484      134,122,094      5,032,390           

Current liabilities 11,648,336        9,602,125          2,046,211           

Long-Term obligations 47,649,767        47,800,047        (150,280)             

     Total liabilities 59,298,103        57,402,172        1,895,931           

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 27,397,380        26,836,071        561,309              

Restricted for debt service 1,207,841          544,419             663,422              

Restricted for capital projects 10,852,844        22,153,113        (11,300,269)        

Unrestricted 40,398,316        27,186,319        13,211,997         

     Total net assets 79,856,381$      76,719,922$      3,136,459$         
 

 

The District’s largest liability (78 percent) is for the repayment of general obligation bonds. Current 

liabilities of the District consist largely of accounts payable, accrued salaries, benefits payable and accrued 

compensated absences.  

 

During the current fiscal year, the District’s net assets increased by $3,136,459.  The District seeks to 

ensure the net assets of the District are sufficient to support operational costs in future years.  Interest 

revenue in future years is expected to remain marginal and the growth rate of property tax collections is 

expected to continue to be at low levels in 2010-11 and future years as new development and property 

reinvestment are curtailed due to the slowed economy. In addition, because of forecasted future low 

revenue growth levels, forecasted pension cost increases and the District’s desire to manage taxpayer 

resources prudently; we have continued to focus on managing expenses to ensure they are less than 

property tax revenue in order to achieve our strategic goal of financial stability. 
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Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the District’s net assets in the current 

year by $3,136,459. Property taxes increased, reflecting increased assessed valuation of the District. 

Earnings on investments, due to a weak economy, fell during the year ended June 30, 2010.  Expenses for 

public safety increased, reflecting personnel cost increases in wages and benefits.  Expenses were managed 

to ensure that net assets as of year end increased proportionately to the cost of annual operations. 

 

 

Governmental Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

from
Changes in Net Assets 2010 2009 Fiscal 2009

Revenues:
Program revenues
  Charges for services 587,305$            758,476$            (171,171)$           
  Operating grants and contributions 241,384              134,753              106,631              
  Capital grants 43,950                432,805              (388,855)             
General revenues:
  Property taxes 72,601,267         68,254,733         4,346,534           
  Earnings on investments 406,556              1,006,351           (599,795)             
  Insurance refunds 420,993              236,921              184,072              
  Gain on sale of capital assets 6,255                  32,173                (25,918)               

  Miscellaneous 264,188              92,978                171,210              

     Total revenues 74,571,898         70,949,190         3,622,708           

Expenditures/expenses:
  Public safety-fire protection 69,649,810         67,371,019         2,278,791           
  Interest on long-term debt 1,785,629           950,457              835,172              
     Total expenses 71,435,439         68,321,476         3,113,963           

Change in net assets 3,136,459           2,627,714           508,745              
Net assets - July 1 76,719,922         74,092,208         2,627,714           
Net assets - June 30 79,856,381$       76,719,922$       3,136,459$         
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements. 

 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on 

short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 

the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure 

of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

 
At June 30, 2010, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 

$65,400,806, a decrease of $7,922,980 in comparison with the prior year.  The majority of this total amount 

(81 percent) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s 

discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved for capital projects, supplies inventory, debt service, 

and retiree medical insurance payments.  

 
General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 2010, 

unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $37,979,877, while total fund balance reached 

$38,261,159. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved 

fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 60 

percent of total General Fund expenditure. 

 
The fund balance of the District’s General Fund increased by $1,149,417, or approximately 3.1 percent 

during the current fiscal year; most of this increase was due to receiving $2,806,887 more in tax revenue 

over the prior year and controlling the rate of expenditure growth.  

 

Capital Projects Fund.  The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for building 

site acquisitions and construction costs for new and existing facilities.  As of June 30, 2010, the ending 

fund balance of the Capital Projects Fund was $10,852,844 and was reserved for capital projects. This fund 

accounts for the proceeds of debt issuances to fund construction, land and apparatus purchases. 

 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

There was one budget transfer resolution to the Pension Trust fund during the year. The budgeted property 

tax revenues were exceeded by the actual as the District had forecasted a negative impact on the District’s 
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property tax collection rate from the typical 94% to 92% during budget development due to concerns about 

foreclosures.  However, the actual collection rate remained at 94%. Interest revenue was budgeted to be 

earned at rates of 1.25% and the actual rates were significantly less on the District’s conservative portfolio. 

 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 

Capital assets.  The District’s investment in capital assets includes land and improvements, buildings 

and improvements, fire apparatus and vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and construction in 

progress. As of June 30, 2010, the District had invested $61,353,530 in capital assets, net of depreciation, 

as shown in the following table:  

Capital Assets Governmental Activities

Increase
(Decrease)

from
(net of depreciation) 2010 2009 Fiscal 2009
Land 10,744,660$        10,353,233$        391,427$            
Buildings and improvements 13,747,886          10,648,202          3,099,684           
Fire apparatus and other vehicles 15,189,295          16,766,473          (1,577,178)         
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,652,780            1,351,029            301,751              
Work in progress 20,435,195          12,924,423          7,510,772           

     Total 61,769,816$        52,043,360$        9,726,456$          
 

During the year, the District’s investment in capital assets increased by $9,726,456, reflecting the  

$13,203,697 of assets added during the year, were offset by $2,961,847 of depreciation and $515,394 of 

net asset disposals. The District work in progress includes three fire stations and the seismic reinforcement 

and interior construction of the command and business operations center building that was purchased at the 

end of fiscal year 2009. 

 

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic financial 

statements on page 49 of this report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total bonded debt of $45,225,280, 

consisting of general obligation bonds, net of unamortized premiums and discounts. Reduction of 

outstanding debt reflects scheduled principal payments made during the fiscal year. The District has been 

given an “Aaa” rating from Moody’s Investors Service. The State of Oregon mandates a general obligation 

debt limit of 1.25 percent of true cash value of assessed property. The District’s legal debt margin is 
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approximately $736 million. Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in note 

III.D.1 on page 50 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
The District anticipates increased property tax revenues in future years based upon projected assessed value 

increases. While the local economy is experiencing continued lack of new construction, and market value 

has declined 6.7% overall, assessed value still remains far below market value, as assessed value is 64% of 

market value on June 30, 2010. The District monitors its property tax collection rates for declines due to 

the economy and has prepared for both growth rate and collection rate declines in the next few years. 

Additionally, property tax revenue may be negatively impacted if our cities and counties utilize urban 

renewal measures to develop new areas. Accordingly, we continue to be very involved in this issue, both 

locally and at the state level. The District lost approximately $1.7 million dollars of its property tax levy to 

urban renewal areas in fiscal year 2010 which equates to a loss of approximately 4.3 cents of our $1.5252 

permanent tax rate. 

 

Because of poor investment returns, the state’s pension system for its public employees, PERS, has 

forecasted higher employer contributions rates for 2011-13 biennium, and additional increases for the 

2013-15 biennium and thereafter.  The District’s future financial forecasts include current projections that 

employer rates will continue to increase based upon recent actuarial information. The recently released 

December 31, 2009 actuarial valuation reflecting recent negative investment returns requires a rate increase 

of 4.51% of payroll for the 2011-13 biennium. 

 

The District’s $.25 local option levy allows the continued funding of 33 firefighters and associated support 

staff through June 30, 2015, as we were strongly supported by our voters at the November 4, 2008 election 

to continue to fund this levy. This provides a welcome measure of financial stability in the years ahead. 

 
Requests for Information 
  

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue’s finances 

for all those with an interest in the District’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information 

provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief 

Financial Officer, Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue, 20665 SW Blanton Street, Aloha, Oregon 97007. 
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet/

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

General
Fund

Capital 
Projects

Fund
Nonmajor

Funds
Total
Funds Adjustments

Statement
of

Net Assets
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42,141,094$ 17,572,391$ 59,713,485$ 652,141$       60,365,626$    
Receivables:
  Property taxes receivable 3,326,015     191,595        3,517,610     3,517,610        
  Accounts receivable 167,565        109,978        277,543        277,543           
Due from other funds 51,845          51,845          (51,845)         
Supplies inventory 281,282        281,282        281,282           
Net pension asset 21,604           21,604             
Bond issuance costs 161,155         161,155           
Restricted assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents 12,759,848$ 12,759,848    12,759,848      
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
  Land and work in progress 31,179,855    31,179,855      
Capital assets, net of accumulated
   depreciation:
  Buildings and improvements 13,747,886    13,747,886      
  Fire apparatus and other vehicles 15,189,295    15,189,295      
  Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,652,780      1,652,780        
      Total assets 45,967,801$ 12,759,848$ 17,873,964$ 76,601,613$ 62,552,871$  139,154,484$ 

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 1,537,464$   1,907,004$   1,370,995$   4,815,463$   217$              4,815,680$      
  Accrued salaries and
    benefits payable 3,269,773     3,269,773     3,269,773        
  Accrued interest payable 360,232         360,232         
  Due to other funds 51,845          51,845          (51,845)         
  Deferred revenue 2,899,405     164,321        3,063,726     (3,063,726)     
  Accrued compensated absences,
    Due within one year 3,202,651      3,202,651        
    Due in more than one year 1,649,851      1,649,851      
  OPEB obligation
     due in more than one year 4,636             4,636               
  Net pension obligation
     due in more than one year 770,000         770,000           
  Bonds payable, net of
     unamortized premium/discount:
    Due within one year 2,540,122      2,540,122        
    Due in more than one year 42,685,158    42,685,158      
      Total liabilities 7,706,642     1,907,004     1,587,161     11,200,807   48,097,296    59,298,103      

Fund balances:
  Reserved for supplies inventory 281,282        281,282      (281,282)       
  Reserved for retiree
    medical insurance 215,414        215,414        (215,414)       
  Reserved for debt service 1,207,841     1,207,841     (1,207,841)     
  Reserved for capital projects 10,852,844   10,852,844   (10,852,844)   
  Unreserved, reported in:  
    General fund 37,979,877   37,979,877   (37,979,877)   
    Special revenue funds 7,931,243     7,931,243     (7,931,243)     
    Capital projects funds 6,932,305     6,932,305     (6,932,305)     
      Total fund balances 38,261,159   10,852,844   16,286,803   65,400,806   (65,400,806)   

(Continued)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet/
Statement of Net Assets (continued)

June 30, 2010

General
Fund

Capital 
Projects

Fund
Nonmajor

Funds
Total
Funds Adjustments

Statement
of

Net Assets

Total liabilities and fund
       balances 45,967,801$ 12,759,848$ 17,873,964$ 76,601,613$   

Net Assets:
  Invested in capital assets, 
    net of related debt 27,397,380$    
  Restricted for:
    Debt service 1,207,841        
    Capital projects 10,852,844      
  Unrestricted 40,398,316      
      Total net assets 79,856,381$  79,856,381$   

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

General
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund
Nonmajor

Funds
Total
Funds Adjustments

Statement
of

Activities

Expenditures/expenses
Current:

  Public Safety 63,497,730$  2,200,201$   65,697,931$ 3,951,879$     69,649,810$ 
Debt service:

  Principal 2,115,000     2,115,000     (2,115,000)      
  Interest 1,798,179     1,798,179     (12,550)           1,785,629     

Capital outlay 11,790,268$ 1,217,469     13,007,737   (13,007,737)    -                    
      Total expenditures 63,497,730    11,790,268   7,330,849     82,618,847   (11,183,408)    71,435,439   

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for services 583,312      583,312     3,993           587,305     
Operating grants and
 contributions 115,955         109,097        225,052        16,332            241,384        
Capital grants 43,950            43,950        

General Revenues:
Taxes 67,867,374    4,564,032     72,431,406   169,861          72,601,267   
Interest 202,263         91,092          108,777        402,132        4,424              406,556        
Insurance refunds 415,446         415,446        5,547              420,993        
Gain on sale of capital assets 6,255              6,255            
Miscellaneous 104,552          104,552        159,636          264,188        
      Total revenues 69,288,902    91,092          4,781,906     74,161,900   409,998          74,571,898   

        Excess (deficiency) of
          revenues over (under)
          expenditures/expenses 5,791,172      (11,699,176)  (2,548,943)    (8,456,947)    11,593,406     3,136,459     

Other Financing
 Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from sales of
  surplus property 398,907        135,060        533,967        (533,967)         -                    
Transfers in 4,641,755     4,641,755     (4,641,755)      
Transfers out (4,641,755)     (4,641,755)    4,641,755       
        Total other financing 
        sources (uses)   (4,641,755)     398,907        4,776,815     533,967        (533,967)         -                    
        Net change in fund
        balances/net assets 1,149,417      (11,300,269)  2,227,872     (7,922,980)    11,059,439$   3,136,459     
Fund balances/net assets:
Beginning of the year 37,111,742    22,153,113  14,058,931 73,323,786 76,719,922 
End of the year 38,261,159$  10,852,844$ 16,286,803$ 65,400,806$ 79,856,381$ 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Property taxes:
  Current year's levy 63,842,289$      66,235,696$      2,393,407$        
  Prior years' levies 1,090,920          1,626,166          535,246             
  Taxes in lieu of property taxes 2,857                 5,513                 2,656                 
Interest on unsegregated property taxes 19,030               22,768               3,738                 
Interest on taxes 21,675               17,498               (4,177)                
Interest on investments 562,500             161,997             (400,503)            
Contracted services 270,000             268,562             (1,438)                
Special service charges 105,837             76,664               (29,173)              
Maintenance services 137,000             97,879               (39,121)              
Rental income 91,500               133,650             42,150               
Plan review fees 2,000                 6,557                 4,557                 
Insurance refunds -                         415,446             415,446             
Grants and donations -                         115,955             115,955             
Miscellaneous 11,000               104,552             93,552               
    Total revenues 66,156,608        69,288,902        3,132,294          

Expenditures
Current
  Public Safety:

    Administration Division:
      Personnel services 1,854,529          1,668,706          185,823             
      Materials and services 365,090             319,417             45,673               
        Total Administration Division 2,219,619          1,988,123          231,496             

    Emergency Operations Division:
      Personnel services 47,545,155        45,522,396        2,022,759          
      Materials and services 2,823,702          2,170,272          653,430             
        Total Emergency Operations Division 50,368,857        47,692,668        2,676,189          

    Finance Division:
      Personnel services 1,499,346          1,243,496          255,850             
      Materials and services 921,794             773,476             148,318             
        Total Finance Division 2,421,140          2,016,972          404,168             

    Support Resources Division:
      Personnel services 10,075,748        8,596,506          1,479,242          
      Materials and services 4,949,528          4,194,744          754,784             
        Total Support Resources Division 15,025,276        12,791,250        2,234,026          

  Total Public Safety 70,034,892        64,489,013        5,545,879          

(Continued)

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts Actual Amounts

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Budget and Actual (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures, Continued
Operating contingency 5,845,071$        -$                   5,845,071$        
      Total expenditures 75,879,963        64,489,013        11,390,950        
        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (9,723,355)         4,799,889          14,523,244        

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out (5,020,016)         (4,681,029)         338,987             
      Total other financing uses (5,020,016)       (4,681,029)       338,987            
        Net change in fund balances (14,743,371)       118,860             14,862,231        
Fund balances - July 1, 2009 30,585,092      32,752,110      2,167,018          
Fund balances - June 30, 2010 15,841,721$      32,870,970$      17,029,249$      

Reconciliation of Budgetary Fund Balance
  to GAAP Fund Balance:

Fund Balance:
     Budgetary Fund Balance: 32,870,970$      
     Advanced recognition of retirement 
       obligation not a GAAP expense 5,390,189          

     GAAP Fund Balance 38,261,159$     

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Net Assets

Internal Service Fund
June 30, 2010

Governmental 
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Assets
Current assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents 652,141$         
   Accounts receivable -                       
      Total assets 652,141           

Liabilities
Current libilities:
   Accounts payable 216                  
      Total liabilities 216                  

Net Assets
Unrestricted 651,925           
      Total net assets 651,925$        

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Assets

Internal Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental 
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Operating Revenue
  Insurance refunds 5,547$             
      Total operating revenues 5,547               

Operating Expense
  Insurance claims 42,869             
      Total operating expenses 42,869             

         Operating loss (37,322)            

Nonoperating Revenue
  Interest income 4,424               
      Total nonoperating revenue 4,424               

       Change in net assets (32,898)            

Net assets, July 1, 2009 684,823           
Net assets, June 30, 2010 651,925$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental 
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
  Received from insurance reimbursements 10,496$           
  Paid for insurance claims (45,152)            
       Net cash from operating activities (34,656)            

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
  Interest received on investments 4,424               
       Net cash from investing activities 4,424               

  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (30,232)            

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2009 682,373           

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2010 652,141$        

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
  from operating activities
    Operating loss (37,322)$          
    Decrease in accounts receivable 4,949               
    Decrease in accounts payable (2,283)              
Net cash from operating activities (34,656)$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Pension Trust
Funds

Assets
   Cash and cash equivalents 403,494$         
   Investments, mutual funds at fair value 399,857           
        Total assets 803,351           

Net Assets
      Held in trust for pension benefits 803,351$        

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Pension Trust
Funds

Additions
Contributions
  Employer 39,274$           
Miscellaneous 5,616               
Investment earnings 51,424             

         Total additions 96,314             

Deductions
  Benefits 384,123           

         Total deductions 384,123           

       Change in net assets (287,809)          

Total net assets, July 1, 2009 1,091,160        
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 803,351$         

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 
 

I. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 
A. Reporting entity 

 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue, a Rural Fire Protection District, is an Oregon municipal corporation, which, 

operating under Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 478 as a Rural Fire Protection District provides fire protection 

within Washington, Clackamas, and Multnomah counties.  

 
The power and authority given to the District is vested in a Board of Directors, each member being elected for a 

four-year term. The Board of Directors has the statutory authority to adopt and modify the budget; levy taxes; 

control all assets, including facilities and properties; authorize borrowing, or long-term debt issuances; sign 

contracts, and develop the programs to be provided. The responsibility and accountability over all funds and 

fiscal matters are vested in the Board of Directors. The District is responsible for its debts and is entitled to 

surpluses. No separate agency receives a financial benefit from nor imposes a financial burden on the District. 

 
The Board of Directors appoints the Fire Chief of the District. The activities under the purview of the Fire Chief 

are within the scope of the reporting entity and the Fire Chief is accountable to the Board of Directors for the 

activities being managed. 

 
The District is the primary, special purpose government responsible for all fire protection within its service 

areas. As a result, all significant activities have been included in the government-wide financial statements. The 

District’s financial statements represent those of a stand-alone government, as there are no component units. 

 
B. Government-wide and fund financial statements 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 

amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
The entity-wide statements and governmental fund statements have been combined as allowed for single-

purpose governmental activities. The Statement of Net Assets and the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet have 

been combined into a single presentation, with adjustments indicated to move from fund totals to the entity-

wide totals. Similarly, the Statement of Activities and the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance have also been combined. Eliminations have been made to 

minimize the double counting of internal activities. Governmental activities are financed primarily through 

property taxes, investment earnings, grants and contributions, and charges for services to other governments.   
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Separate financial statements are provided for the internal service fund and fiduciary funds, even though the 

latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 

 
C. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

 
The government-wide financial information (Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) is reported 

using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the internal service 

fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 

when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants are recognized as 

revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

 
The governmental fund financial information uses a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. 

With this measurement focus, generally only current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance 

sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and 

decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in fund balance. The governmental fund types are 

maintained using the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded in the accounting 

period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures are 

recorded at the time the related fund liabilities are incurred, except for: (1) interfund transactions for services, 

which are recorded on the accrual basis;  (2) interest expense on long-term debt, which is recorded as due; (3) 

insurance premiums benefiting more than one fiscal year are recorded when paid; and (4) accrued compensated 

absences, which are recorded when payment is due. 

 
Revenue is determined to be measurable when the transaction amount is determinable and available when it is 

collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.  

 
The District considers revenues available if they are collected within 60 days of year-end, with the exception of 

investment interest, which is recognized when earned. The most significant revenue source, which is 

measurable and available under the modified accrual basis of accounting, is property tax revenue. 

 

For the Internal Service Fund, a proprietary fund type, the District reports insurance refunds received and claims 

paid as operating revenues and expenses, respectively.  Other amounts are reported as non-operating. 
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The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
 The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 

District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund, either legally or by Board direction. 

The principal revenue source is property taxes. Primary expenditures are for public safety. 

 

 The Capital Projects Fund; a capital projects fund type, accounts for the general obligation bond debt 

issuances and the related site acquisitions and construction costs for new and existing facilities, as well as 

the purchase of public safety emergency response apparatus. The principal resources are proceeds from 

debt issuance. 

 
Additionally, the District reports the following fund types: 

 
 Non-major governmental funds, including special revenue, debt service and other capital projects funds 

are reported in the aggregate.   

 
 The internal service fund type includes the District’s Insurance Fund and is used to account for the 

accumulation of resources used for payment of claims and losses that are less than the District's 

deductible limits for insurance coverage. The principal revenue sources are interest income and insurance 

refunds.   

 
 The fiduciary funds account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity under the terms of formal 

trust agreements. The District’s trust funds are two pension trust funds, the Pension Trust Fund, and the 

Volunteer Length of Service Award Plan (LOSAP) Fund. The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the 

accumulation of resources for the District's pension plan for employees who retired prior to July 16, 

1981, and for the payments to these retirees and beneficiaries thereunder. Compensation levels and years 

of service were frozen as of June 30, 1981, for purposes of computing plan benefits. The principal 

revenue source is earnings on investments. The Volunteer LOSAP Fund accounts for the accumulation of 

resources for the District’s Length of Service Award Plan for volunteer firefighters. The principal sources 

of revenue are employer contributions and earnings on investments. 

 
Private sector standards of accounting and reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in 

internal service fund financial statements to the extent that these standards do not conflict with or contradict the 

guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The District has elected not to follow 

subsequent private-sector guidance. 
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As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 

information. 

 
D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

 
1. Cash and cash equivalents 

 
The District considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of 

three months or less, when purchased, to be cash and cash equivalents. Investments maintained in the Oregon 

Local Government Investment Pool are carried at cost, which approximates fair value, and are classified as a cash 

equivalent. Fair value of the investments in the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is the same as the 

value of the pool shares. Short-term investments classified as cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost. 

 
2. Investments 
 
Investments other than U.S. Government agency securities are carried at fair value. Investments in U.S. 

Government agency securities are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Fair value is based 

on current market prices. Changes in the fair value of investments are recognized as revenue. 

 
3. Receivables 

 
Property taxes, all of which are receivable from property owners within the District, are assessed on January 1 

and become a lien against the property as of July 1 each year.  Taxes are payable in three installments on 

November 15, February 15, and May 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 15 are considered delinquent. 

Accounts are periodically reviewed for collectability. At June 30, 2010, no allowance for doubtful accounts is 

considered necessary. 

 
4. Supplies inventory  

 
Inventory of supplies is stated at cost (first-in, first-out method). In the governmental funds statements, 

expenditures are recognized when inventories are consumed (consumption method) rather than when purchased.  

 
5. Restricted Assets 
 

Proceeds from the District’s general obligation bonds are classified as restricted assets on the Balance 

Sheet/Statement of Net Assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  The Capital Projects 

Fund is used to report proceeds of bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. Where both 

restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the District’s policy to expend restricted resources first, 

then unrestricted as necessary. 

44



Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 
 

 

 
 

6. Capital assets 

 
Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date of 

donation. The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated 

useful life greater than one year. Replacements, which improve or extend the life of property, are capitalized. 

Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized as a capital asset. Maintenance, repairs, and equipment 

replacements of a routine nature are charged to expenditures/expenses as incurred and are not capitalized. 

  
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

 
Buildings and improvements 15 - 30 years 

Fire apparatus and other vehicles       4 - 17 years 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment       4 - 10 years 

  

7. Liabilities for compensated absences 
 
Accumulated accrued compensated absences for vacation and personal leave benefits are accrued when incurred 

in the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities. A liability for those amounts is reported in 

governmental funds only if they have matured as a result of employee retirements or resignations. Accumulated 

sick leave does not vest and is, therefore, recorded when leave is taken.  

 
8. Long-term debt 

 
Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well 

as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the related debt using the straight-line method, 

which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 

premium or discount. 

 
In the fund financial information, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are recognized 

when incurred.  The face amount of the debt issued, premiums, and discounts received on debt issuances, are 

reported as other financing sources and uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 

proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
9. Fund equity 

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances to indicate that a 

portion is not available for appropriation as of year-end or to indicate that a portion is legally segregated for a 

specific future use.  
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10. Retirement plans 

 
Substantially all of the District’s employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees 

Retirement System (OPERS). Contributions to OPERS are made on a current basis as required by the plan and 

are charged as expenses/expenditures. 

 
The District maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for certain former employees who retired 

prior to July 16, 1981. The District has not made actuarially required contributions in recent years as the plan 

was closed but will make contributions beginning in the 2011 fiscal year as assets deplete. 

 

The District has a volunteer Length of Service Award Plan (LOSAP) benefiting its volunteer firefighters. 

Actuarially determined contributions to the LOSAP are funded annually by the District. 

 
II. Stewardship, compliance, and accountability 

 
A. Budgetary information  

 
The District budgets all funds in accordance with the requirements of state law. All funds are budgeted on the 

modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the Insurance, Pension Trust, and Volunteer LOSAP Funds, 

which are budgeted on the accrual basis of accounting. 

 
The Board of Directors adopts the original budget by resolution prior to the beginning of the District's fiscal 

year (July 1 through June 30). The Board resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level by 

which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. Total personnel services, materials and services, 

capital outlay, and transfers out and contingencies are the levels of control established by the resolution with the 

exception of the General Fund, where those same appropriation levels are defined by division levels. The 

detailed budget document, however, is required to contain more specific detailed information for the above 

mentioned expenditure categories and management may revise the detailed line item budgets within 

appropriation categories.  

 
Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the use of a supplemental budget and 

appropriation resolution. Supplemental budgets less than 10 percent of the fund's original budget may be 

adopted by the Board of Directors at a regular Board meeting. A supplemental budget greater than 10 percent of 

the fund's original budget requires hearings before the public, publication in newspapers, and approval by the 

Board of Directors. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation transfers 

between the levels of control. Such transfers require approval by the Board of Directors. The District adopted 

one budget transfer resolution during the year ended June 30, 2010. Appropriations lapse at year-end. 
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III. Detailed notes on all accounts 
 

A.  Cash, cash equivalents and investments 

 
1.  Deposits and investments 
 
The District maintains separate accountability by fund for cash, cash equivalents, and investment accounts. 

Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits and time certificates of deposit. The 

combined total book balance at June 30, 2010 was $28,456,493 and the total bank balance was $28,585,818.  

The District’s demand deposits are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; remaining bank 

deposits are insured to $250,000. Remaining amounts are secured in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes 

295 under a collateral program administered by the Oregon State Treasurer, which is a shared liability structure 

for participating bank depositories, protecting public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100 

percent protected. In general, bank depositories are required to pledge collateral valued at least 10 percent of 

their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are well capitalized, 25 percent if they are adequately capitalized 

or 110 percent of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge 110 

percent by the Office of State Treasurer. In the event of a bank failure, the entire pool of collateral pledged by 

all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public funds of government 

entities. 

 
 At June 30, 2010, the District’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments are comprised of the following: 

Cash on hand 900$                
Cash with county assessors 353,658           
Deposits with financial institutions 28,456,493      
State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool 43,467,917      
Investments:
  US Government securities 1,250,000        
  Open-ended mutual funds 399,857           

73,928,825$    
 

 

Cash and investments are reflected on the basic financial statements as follows: 

             

Governmental
Activities

Fiduciary
Funds

Cash and cash equivalents:
      Unrestricted 60,365,626$   403,494$         
      Restricted 12,759,848     -                       
Investments 399,857           
      Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 73,125,474$  803,351$         
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The Oregon State Treasury Finance Division administers the LGIP. It is an open-ended no-load diversified 

portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the state that by law is made the 

custodian of, or had control of, any fund.  The LGIP is commingled with the State's short-term funds. In seeking 

to best serve local governments of Oregon, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short-Term Fund 

Board. The purpose of the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment 

options of the LGIP. Cost approximates the District’s fair value in the LGIP. 

 
2. Custodial credit risk 

 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to 

recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party.  At June 30, 2010, the District 

does not have investments exposed to custodial credit risk. 

 

3. Interest rate risk 

 
As a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates, the District’s 

governmental funds investment policies limit maturities to 18 months.  Generally, short-term investment funds will 

be invested for periods less than 12 months. Identified amounts in those funds may be available for investment 

periods up to 18 months. Investments with a maturity of 12 months or more shall be limited to U.S. Agency or 

U.S. Treasury securities.   

 
4. Credit risk 

 
State statutes govern the District’s investment policy. Permissible investments for governmental funds include 

general obligations of the United States Government and its agencies, obligations of the States of Oregon, 

California, Idaho, and Washington that have a rating at settlement of AA or better, A-1 rated commercial paper 

and bankers’ acceptances, Aa rated corporate bonds, time deposits, repurchase agreements, and the State of 

Oregon LGIP. The Pension Trust funds maintain a separate investment policy following fiduciary and trust 

investment guidelines and that allow investment in mutual funds in addition to the above investment types. 

 
The LGIP was created to offer a short-term investment alternative to Oregon local governments.  The 

investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board, which is not registered with the U.S. 

Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company, and approved by the Oregon Investment 

Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.898).  Separate financial statements for the Oregon Short-Term Fund are 

available from the Oregon State Treasurer.  The State of Oregon LGIP and money market account are unrated 

for credit quality. 
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B. Capital assets 

 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows: 

Balance
June 30, 2009 Increases Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2010

Governmental activities:
Non-depreciable capital assets
  Land 10,353,233$     629,677$         (238,250)$       10,744,660$     
  Construction in progress 12,924,423       11,033,273      (3,522,501)      20,435,195       
      Total capital assets,
        not being depreciated 23,277,656       11,662,950      (3,760,751)      31,179,855       

Depreciable capital assets
  Buildings and improvements 24,689,496       3,920,750        -                      28,610,246       
  Fire apparatus and other vehicles 28,401,083       338,782           (2,344,227)      26,395,638       
  Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 5,789,949         803,716           (153,230)         6,440,435         
      Total depreciable capital assets 58,880,528       5,063,248        (2,497,457)      61,446,319       

Less accumulated depreciation for:
  Buildings and improvements (14,041,294)      (821,066)          -                      (14,862,360)     
  Fire apparatus and other vehicles (11,634,611)      (1,642,601)       2,070,869       (11,206,343)     
  Furniture, fixtures, and equipment (4,438,919)        (498,180)          149,444          (4,787,655)       
      Total accumulated depreciation (30,114,824)      (2,961,847)       2,220,313       (30,856,358)     

      Total capital assets being
        depreciated, net 28,765,704       2,101,401        (277,144)         30,589,961       

Total capital assets,
  net of depreciation 52,043,360$     13,764,351$    (4,037,895)$    61,769,816$     

 All depreciation is charged to Public Safety in the Statement of Activities. 

 

C. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 
 

An interfund receivable of $51,845 was recorded in the General Fund, payable from non-major governmental 

funds for reimbursement of personnel and materials and services used in regional emergency preparedness. 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2010, the District made transfers totaling $4,641,755 from the General Fund to the 

other governmental funds primarily for capital asset acquisitions. In addition, $39,274 was paid into the 

District’s Volunteer LOSAP Fund (a fiduciary fund) during the year. This expenditure in the Governmental 

Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance was reported as a transfer from the 

General Fund on a budgetary basis. 
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D. Long-term debt 

 
1. Bonds payable 

 
The District was authorized by its voters in November 2006, to issue $77,500,000 of general obligation bonds. 

The District has outstanding bonds payable from the $20,000,000 issuance of 20-year bonds dated April 11, 

2007, with stated interest rates on specific maturities ranging from 4.0 percent to 5.0 percent, the $14,000,000 

issuance of 15-year bonds dated March 17, 2009, with stated interest rates ranging from 3.0 percent to 4.375 

percent and the $15,000,000 issuance of 20-year bonds dated June 16, 2009, with stated interest rates ranging 

from 3.0 percent to 4.25 percent.  All these bond issues were for purposes of funding seismic improvements, 

station construction and command center projects, and to purchase fire apparatus. At June 30, 2010, the District 

has $28,500,000 of remaining authority to issue bonds. 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows: 
 

June 30, 
2009 Additions Reductions

June 30, 
2010

Due in
One Year

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
  General obligation bonds 47,000,000$  -$                   (2,115,000)$   44,885,000$  2,520,000$    

Unamortized premiums and
  discounts 360,402 -                     (20,122) 340,280         20,122
    Total long-term liabilities 47,360,402$  -$                   (2,135,122)$   45,225,280$  2,540,122$    

 

 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds are as follows: 
 
 

General Obligation
Bonds Series 2007

dated 4/11/07

General Obligation
Bonds Series 2009

dated 3/17/09

General Obligation
Bonds Series 2009 B

dated 6/16/09
Year of

Maturity Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010-11 1,000,000$    694,500$      960,000$       486,000$      560,000$       558,173$      
2011-12 1,000,000      652,000        960,000         457,200        570,000         541,373        
2012-13 1,000,000      612,000        960,000         428,400        580,000         524,272        
2013-14 1,000,000      572,000        960,000         399,600        595,000         506,873        
2014-15 1,000,000      532,000        960,000         370,800        610,000         489,022        
2016-20 5,000,000      2,060,000     4,800,000      1,374,000     3,390,000      2,092,212     
2021-25 5,000,000      1,051,750     3,840,000      412,800        4,115,000      1,360,212     
2026-29 2,000,000      127,500        4,025,000      435,814        

Total 17,000,000$  6,301,750$   13,440,000$  3,928,800$   14,445,000$  6,507,951$   
 

50



Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 
 

 

 
 

2. Compensated absences 
 
Compensated absences activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows: 
 

Balance
June 30, 2009 Additions Reductions

Balance
June 30, 2010

Current
Portion

Governmental activities:
Compensated absences 4,417,207$     5,498,663$   (5,063,368)$   4,852,502$    3,202,651$   

 
 
Due to the current financial resources focus of the governmental funds, only the portion of the accrued 

compensated absences related to retirements or resignations as of June 30, 2010, is recorded on the balance 

sheet. However, there was no pending amount as of June 30, 2010. The entire balance is reported on the 

Statement of Net Assets. Also, for the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated 

by the General Fund. 

 

E.  Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Statements to Entity-wide Statements of Net     

Assets and Activities 

 
Governmental fund balances differ from net assets as presented in the Statement of Net Assets due to the 

differences in measurement focus between the fund and entity-wide statements. Fund balance as presented in 

the governmental funds balance sheet reconciles to net assets in the Statement of Net Assets through 

consideration of the following: 
 

Fund balance in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 65,400,806$    

Items that are not current financial resources or 
  liabilities, and thus are not reported in the fund statements:
     Net pension asset 21,604             
     Unamortized bond issuance costs 161,155           
     Other post employment benefit (4,636)              
     Capital assets, net 61,769,816      
     Accrued compensated absences (4,852,502)       
     Net pension obligation (770,000)          
     Long-term debt (45,225,280)     
     Accrued interest payable on long-term debt (360,232)          
     Deferred revenue recognized on full accrual basis 3,063,726        

Net assets of Internal Service Funds combined with 
  total governmental activities 651,924           

Net assets in the Statement of Net Assets 79,856,381$    
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Similarly, changes in fund balance reconcile to changes in net assets in the Statement of Activities through 

consideration of the following: 

 

Net changes in fund balances (7,922,980)$     

Amounts that are not considered current financial resources
  or uses are not reported in the funds, but are considered
  on the full accrual basis in the Statement of Activities:
     Net increases in capital assets ($13,214,614) less 
       depreciation for the year ($2,960,446) 10,254,168      
     Gain on sale of capital assets 6,255               
     Property taxes not meeting the measurable and
       available criteria 169,861           
     Decrease in net pension asset (21,980)            
     Certain revenues recognized as measurable and
       available in the current year (125,173)          
     Net increase in accrued compensated absences (435,295)          
     Other post employment benefit (8,682)              
     Net increase in net pension obligation (330,355)          
     Payments on long-term debt and related
       expenses 2,117,506        
Amounts considered current financial resources and reported
  in the funds, but which are not considered in the full accrual 
  Statement of Activities:
     Proceeds from sale of capital assets (533,967)          

    Change in net assets of Internal Service fund combined
       with total governmental activities (32,899)            

Net change in net assets 3,136,459$      
 

 
IV. Other information 

 
A. Risk management 

 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of or damage to and destruction of assets, 

errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The District, through its General Fund, 

purchases commercial insurance. Deductibles are generally at $5,000 or less and natural disasters have a 

deductible of $100,000.  Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the last three fiscal 

years. 
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The District's industrial accident insurance policies allow a three-year retrospective annual premium adjustment 

until claims experience becomes available. Alternatively, the District may annually elect to close out one or 

more of the open claim years. Claim years for fiscal 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 remain open.  The District's 

maximum liability for premiums related to these four open claim years is approximately $1.8 million which 

represents the difference between the maximum possible premium less the premium paid.  If the claims 

experience for any of these open claim years is favorable, the District could receive a refund of a portion of the 

premiums paid. 

 
B. Related party transactions 

 
The District contracts with Washington County Consolidated Communications Agency (WCCCA), an ORS 190 

entity, which is an intergovernmental entity created by agreement of local governments. WCCCA functions as a 

9-1-1 dispatch agency. The District is a participating member of the agreement.  During the year ended June 30, 

2010, the District paid $1,332,868 to WCCCA for dispatch fees and $1,073 for equipment maintenance charges. 

WCCCA paid $113,667 to the District for an interim director, $9,000 for contracted medical director services, 

and $1,706 for reimbursement of expenses and miscellaneous services that the District provided to WCCCA for 

the year ended June 30, 2010. 

 
C. Deferred compensation plan 

 
The District offers all employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue 

Code Section 457(b). The plan, available to all District employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 

salary until future years. Participation in the plan is optional. Under terms of the bargaining agreement, 

participating employees, who meet length of service requirements, receive a District matching contribution in 

an amount ranging from 1.5 percent to 3.0 percent of base wages. The District makes a similar match for non-

bargaining employees. The District's contribution during fiscal year 2010 was $503,099, of which $380,123 was 

made for the bargaining unit employees.  

 

D. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 
 
1. Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
 

Plan Description - The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS or “the System”) provides 

statewide defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans for units of state government, political 

subdivisions, community colleges, and school districts. For the District and state agencies, community colleges, 

school districts, and political subdivisions that have joined the State and Local Government Rate Pool, PERS is 

a cost-sharing, multiple-employer system. PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 
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238, Chapter 283A, and Internal Revenue Code 401(a) by the Public Employees Retirement Board.  The Board 

has the authority under state statutes to amend the Plan's benefits and contribution rates. PERS issues financial 

reports, available to the public, that include financial statements and required supplementary information. The 

reports can be obtained from the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 

97281-3700, or by calling 503-598-7377. 
 

The Plans offer retirement and disability benefits, post-employment healthcare benefits, annual cost of living 

increases, and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits differ depending upon employee entry 

date. PERS Tier One and Tier Two plans, and the Oregon Public Service Employee’s Retirement Plan (OPSRP) 

established for public employees hired after August 29, 2003, are established by state statutes to provide 

benefits for state and local governments and their employees. The authority to establish and amend the benefit 

provisions of the plan rests with the Oregon Legislature.  

 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost - The required employee contribution of six percent is paid by the 

District as a result of a collective bargaining agreement. Prior to December 31, 2003, the employee’s six percent 

contribution was made to the PERS ORS 238 plans. Effective January 1, 2004, this same six percent 

contribution was required to be remitted to the Individual Account Program (IAP) for all eligible employees 

under the ORS 238A Individual Account Program plan. The District also contributes the remaining amounts 

necessary to pay benefits when due. The District’s contributions to PERS were approximately $7,174,000 for 

2010, $6,657,000 for 2009, and $6,342,000 for 2008, equal to the required contributions each year. The District 

is required by ORS 238.225 to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rate adopted by the 

PERS board based on the December 31, 2007 actuarial valuation for the District for fiscal year 2009-10 was 

11.19 percent for Tier One and Tier Two employees.  For OPSRP employees, the District remitted contributions 

based on employee class. The OPSRP contribution rates were 4.74 percent for general service employees and 

7.45 percent for police and fire employees.  

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The actuarial assumptions in the December 31, 2007, valuation 

included (a) 8.0 percent investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 3.75 percent with additional 

increases for promotion and longevity that vary by age and service, (c) post-retirement cost of living increases 

of 2.0 percent per year, and (d) certain demographic assumptions. The underlying long-term assumed rate of 

inflation is 2.75 percent per year. The actuarial value of PERS assets are valued at fair market value on the 

valuation date less reserve equal to a prorata portion of the investment gains (losses) over the four year period 

ending on the valuation date. The unfunded actuarial liability as of the December 31, 2007 valuation is 

amortized on a level percentage of covered payroll on a closed fixed-term method basis over a 20-year period 
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through December 31, 2027. In January 2010, the PERS Board adopted a rate stabilization method change to 

include a graded scale in the funding percentages within certain parameters. 

 

2. Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 

Plan Description - The District maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for those former 

employees of Washington County Fire Protection District No. 1 (a merged District), who retired prior to July 

16, 1981. Compensation levels and years of service were frozen for benefit purposes as of June 30, 1981. The 

amortization period for this plan is closed. The plan is accounted for on a flow of economic resources 

measurement focus and uses the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits are recognized when incurred. 

Administrative costs are paid with plan assets and consist primarily of professional services. 
 

The Plan is maintained for four retired employees and three beneficiaries. Benefits paid are based upon the 

former employees' years of service and a percentage of their average monthly compensation prior to June 30, 

1981.  
 
The Plan is administered by the Fire Chief. Benefits under this plan consist of payments to retirees.  

Amendments to the plan may be made at the discretion of the Board. Investments consist primarily of 

investments in the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool and open-end mutual funds. 
 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The total actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits as of 

June 30, 2010, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, was $2,191. All benefits are vested. Significant actuarial 

assumptions used in the valuation included (a) rate of return of 3.5 percent (reduced from 5% in the previous 

valuation), (b) cost of living increases of 1.5% to 2% percent for the 1976 Plan retirees and 2.0% to 3.5% 

percent for 1973 Plan retirees, and (c) mortality based upon static table pursuant to IRS Treasury Regulation 

§1.430(h)(3)-1 for 2010 valuations. Because all pension participants are retired, the actuarial valuation of 

liabilities was performed by discounting expected future cash flows at the assumed rate of interest earned by 

assets. Assets are actuarially valued at market value.  Unfunded liabilities are amortized over a 9-year open 

amortization period. 

 

Funded Status - Based on the June 30, 2010 actuarial valuation, the annual pension costs are $330,355. The Net 

Pension Obligation (NPO) as of June 30, 2010 is $770,000.  Pension benefits for retirees and beneficiaries for 

future years will be made on a pay-as-you-go basis.  As benefits are paid over the remaining lifetime of the current 

participants, it is expected that the Net Pension Obligation will trend toward zero over the remaining lifetime of the 

current participants. 

 

The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports. 
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Three-Year Trend Information 
 

Year 
Ended

June 30,

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)

Percentage of
APC Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation

2010 $330,355 0% $770,000
2009 225,184             0 439,645
2008 214,461              0 214,461  

 

 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets, June 30, 2010: 
Pension

Trust Fund
ASSETS
   Cash and cash equivalents 2,191$            
      Total assets 2,191              

NET ASSETS
      Held in trust for pension benefits 2,191$           

 
 

Changes in Net Assets for the year ended June 30, 2010: 

Pension
Trust Fund

ADDITIONS
Investment earnings:
  Interest 351$                
  Miscellaneous 364                  
      Total investment earnings 715                  
         Total additions 715                  

DEDUCTIONS
  Benefits 351,749           
         Total deductions 351,749           

       Change in net assets (351,034)          

Total net assets, July 1, 2009 353,225           
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 2,191$             
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3. Volunteer Length of Service Award Plan (LOSAP) 
 
Plan Description - The District adopted a Volunteer Length of Service Award Plan (LOSAP) effective July 1, 

1998, for its volunteer firefighters. The District Finance Division administers investments and the investment mix 

consists primarily of investments in the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool and open-end mutual funds. 

 
This plan is accounted for as a single employer defined benefit plan and provides length of service award benefits 

of a lump sum amount based upon years of service. The Fire Chief, as the Plan Administrator, administers the plan 

and the Board of Directors provides oversight. Amendments to the plan may be made at the discretion of the 

Board. Vesting occurs after five years of service and service benefits are limited to 25 years. Volunteers are 

eligible for full retirement benefits after age 55. However, reduced benefits are available for vested volunteers after 

separation from service prior to age 55.   
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The June 30, 2010 valuation included rate of return of five percent and 

mortality based upon a static table for annuitants described in Treasury Regulation §1.430(h)(3)-1 for valuation 

dates occurring in 2010. The aggregate cost method is used to determine the normal cost for Annual Required 

Contribution (ARC) and Annual Pension Cost (APC). The entry age normal actuarial cost method is used to 

determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) for the disclosure of the funded status and funding progress of 

the program. Assets are actuarially valued at market value. Under the aggregate cost method, the unfunded 

value of all benefits expected to be paid from the plan is spread over the expected working career of all 

participants for the group as a whole (not as a sum of individual allocations), in such a way that annual costs are 

expected to remain level. This method does not identify or separately amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued 

liability. The actuarially determined annual required contribution in fiscal year 2010 was $53,611, which was 

greater than the actual contribution of $39,274. There is no explicit assumption for future inflation, as benefits 

are not tied to inflation. 
 

Funded Status and Funding Progress – As of June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the 

District’s actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for benefits was $982,436 and the actuarial value of assets was 

$801,161, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $181,275.  The schedule of funding 

progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, 

presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 

over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 

The plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports. 
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Three-Year Trend Information 
 

Year 
Ended

June 30,
Annual Pension

Cost (APC)
Percentage of

APC Contributed

Net Pension
Obligation 

Asset
2010 $61,254 64% $21,604
2009 38,238  157    43,584
2008 39,274  153    20,726  

 
 

 
 
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation, June 30, 2010: 

 

Volunteer
LOSAP Fund

Annual Required Contribution 53,611$         
Interest on NPO (2,179)           
Adjustment for NPO 9,822             
    Annual Pension Cost 61,254           

Contributions (39,274)         

    Increase in Net Pension Obligation 21,980           

Net Pension Obligation (Asset) - beginning of year (43,584)         

Net Pension Obligation (Asset) - end of year (21,604)$      

 
 
 

 
Condensed Statement of Net Assets, June 30, 2010: 

Volunteer
LOSAP Fund

ASSETS
   Cash and cash equivalents 401,303$      
   Investments 399,857        
      Total assets 801,160        

NET ASSETS
      Held in trust for pension benefits 801,160$     
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Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets, for the year ended June 30, 2010: 
 
 
 

Volunteer
LOSAP Fund

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
  Employer 39,274$        
    Total contributions 39,274          
Investment earnings:
  Interest 2,607            
  Dividends 7,112            
  Miscellaneous 5,253            
  Net increase in the fair value of investments 41,354          
      Net investment earnings 56,326          
         Total additions 95,600          

DEDUCTIONS
  Benefits 32,375          
         Total deductions 32,375          

       Change in net assets 63,225          

Total net assets, July 1, 2009 737,935        
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 801,160$      

 
 

 
E. Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) 

 
1. Health Benefit Retiree Program  
Plan Description - The District’s Health Benefit Retiree Program was established in accordance with Oregon 

Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303. ORS stipulate that for the purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the 

rate must be based on all plan members, including both active employees and retirees. The District accounts for 

the resources and expenditures associated with funding this single-employer program through the Retiree 

Medical Insurance Stipend Fund, a special revenue fund. The District’s Health Benefit Retiree Program has two 

components: the Explicit Benefit Plan and the Self-Pay Health Plan. The Explicit Benefit Plan is comprised of 

several agreements made between the District and various employees and employee groups. Under the plan, 

certain union and non-union retirees are eligible for an explicit benefit in the form of either a monthly stipend or 

subsidized medical benefits. This plan is closed to current active employees. The Self-Pay Health Plan is 

provided in accordance with ORS 243.303, which requires that early retirees, including those ineligible for an 

explicit benefit, be allowed to continue their health care coverage at their own expense. Since union actives 

continue their coverage through the Union Trust, only non-union actives are eligible to continue their coverage 
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under the District’s health plan after retirement. The difference between retiree claims costs, which because of 

the effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of retiree healthcare 

premiums represents the District’s implicit employer contribution. The District did not establish an irrevocable 

trust (or equivalent arrangement) to account for the plan.    

 

Funding Policy – Under the Explicit Benefit Plan, based upon past contractual arrangements with the District’s 

bargaining unit, the District currently pays amounts for medical insurance for retirees until they reach 65 years 

of age. This benefit is determined by the retiring employee’s years of service and ranges from $50 to $100 per 

month. A similar arrangement was extended to the retired non-bargaining employees. Under the Self-Pay 

Health Plan, the District makes no contributions. As of June 30, 2009, the date of the most recent actuarial 

valuation, there were 92 active employees and 72 retirees and surviving spouses included in the Health Benefit 

Retiree Program. 

 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The District’s annual other postemployment benefit cost  is 

calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined 

in accordance within the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 

ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or 

funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the 

OPEB obligation at the end of the year: 

 

 

2010
Annual required contribution  $     135,136 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation               (121)
Adjustment to ARC for Net OPEB Obligation                   -   
Annual OPEB cost 135,015        
Expected contributions        (126,333)
Increase in net OPEB obligation             8,682 
Net OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of year (4,046)
Net OPEB obligation - end of year  $         4,636 
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The District’s annual OPEB cost, the contribution, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans, 

and the net OPEB obligation for 2010 were as follows: 

 

Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual Obligation

Ending OPEB Cost (Asset)
2010 135,015$      93.57 % 4,636$      
2009 135,136        102.99 (4,046)       

%  of Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

 
 

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of June 30, 2010, the District’s actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 

for benefits was $1,693,719, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 

accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,693,719 on a covered payroll of $7,450,107.  The schedule of funding progress, 

presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, will eventually 

present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 

over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value 

of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events into the future. Examples 

include assumptions about the future employment, mortality, claim cost, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts 

determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the employer are 

subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made 

about the future. 
 

The actuarial cost method used to determine the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for this plan was the 

Entry Age Normal (EAN) method. Under this method, the District adopted the Level Dollar alternative to apply 

the EAN method, where the unfunded value of all benefits expected to be paid from the plan is spread over the 

expected working career of all participants in such a way that annual costs are expected to remain level. The 

actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of three percent and a 55 percent assumption of participants who 

elect medical coverage at retirement; ten percent of whom will also elect to continue dental coverage at 

retirement. They also assume medical and vision premiums would increase at 12 percent inflation for the 

current year, grading down to an annual rate of five percent after fourteen years, which is consistent with 

expectations for long-term health care cost inflation. An open period was used for the medical portion of the 

plan and a closed period was used to amortize the unfunded liability attributed to the stipend. There is no 

explicit assumption for future inflation, as benefits are not tied to inflation. The demographic assumptions, such 

as mortality rates, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, and withdrawal rates, are the same as those used 

by Oregon PERS. 
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2. PERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) 

 

Plan Description – As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) the District 

contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a 

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by OPERS. 

RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums of 

eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to establish and 

amend the benefit provisions of RHIA reside with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants 

after January 1, 2004. OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 

required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to OPERS, PO Box 23700, Tigard, 

OR  97281-37400. 

 

Funding Policy – Given that RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution 

requirements of the plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only 

by the Oregon Legislature. ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare 

companion health insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the RHIA established by 

the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner 

provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member 

must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability 

allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both Medicare 

Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a 

deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) 

is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and 

the member retired before May 1, 1991. 
 

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by 

OPERS, and the District currently contributes .29% of annual covered Tier 1 and Tier 2 payroll and .19% of 

OPSRP payroll. The OPERS Board of Trustees sets the employer contribution rates based on the annual 

required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 

parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is 

projected to  cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of 

the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The District’s contribution to RHIA for the year ended June 

30, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $102,500 and $131,000 respectively.  
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3. Retiree Health Plan For Local 1660 Members 

 

Plan Description - Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R) contributes to the IAFF Local 1660 Union Health 

Trust, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by Local 

1660. The Health Trust provides medical benefits to retired employees of participating fire districts. The 

authority to establish and amend benefit provisions remains with Local 1660. The Health Trust issues a publicly 

available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the 

retiree health plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Mr. Rocky L. Hanes, President, IAFF Local 1660, 

P.O. Box 1904, Lake Oswego, OR 97035. 

 

Funding Policy - Local 1660 sets the contribution requirements for the retirees of the participating employers 

and they may be amended by the Local 1660 board of trustees. Currently, retirees must self-pay for their retiree 

health coverage and health coverage is only available until attainment of age 65. Retired members and 

beneficiaries receiving benefits contribute an average of $779 per month for medical coverage and $91 per 

month for dental coverage to age 65. 

 

Participating fire districts are contractually required to contribute at a monthly per employee rate negotiated 

with Local 1660. The negotiated per employee rate reflects the on-going net claims costs for retired members, 

but is not directly based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially 

determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding 

that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded 

actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

 

TVF&R contributions to the Union Health Trust for the plan years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were 

$5,001,328, $4,352,432, and $4,057,378, respectively, which equaled the required contribution as negotiated for 

each year. 

 
F. Commitments and contingencies 

 
On March 9, 2004, the City of West Linn residents voted to annex to the District as of July 1, 2004. As part of 

the annexation contract between the City of West Linn and the District, the District has made certain 

commitments to reconstruct two fire station facilities within the City, generally within seven years of 

annexation. One fire station is complete and the other fire station will be completed by the end of the 2010 

calendar year.   
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On June 22, 2010, the Board voted to authorize the District to purchase several parcels of land totaling 

$1,640,000 for the purpose of relocating two fire stations in the future.  These land purchases will be completed 

during the 2010-11 year. 

 

As of June 30, 2010, the District is committed under various accepted bid agreements and contracts for 

approximately $6,000,000 for goods, services and construction of facilities. 

 

The District has been named in litigation regarding property damage during a fire.  The District’s Oregon Tort 

liability limits are limited to $50,000 for property damage and the District’s insurance company is vigorously 

defending the merits of the claim.  The District expects the risk of any loss to be negligible. 

 

G. Subsequent events 

On September 30, 2010, the District completed the purchase of a tract of land for fire station 68 in the amount 

of $1,001,100. 
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Schedule of Funding Progress 

Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 

Actuarial  Date
June 30, AVA (1) AAL(2)

FAAL/
(UAAL)

Percent
Funded

Co vered
Payroll

2010 $2,191 $2,921,875 (2,919,684)     -         % N/A
2008 1,002,973        2,603,541       (1,600,568) 39           N/A

2001 2,706,837 2,670,258 36,579 101 N/A  
 
 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
Volunteer Length of Service Award Plan 

 
Actuarial 

Date
J une 30, AVA (1 ) AAL(2 )

FAAL/
(UAAL )

Percent
Fun ded

Covered
Payrol l

2010 $801,161 $982,436 (181,275)$    81.55    % N/A
2009 737,936     936,162     (198 ,226) 78.83    N/A  

 
 
 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
Health Benefit Retiree Program 

 
Actuarial  

Date
June 30, AVA (1 ) AAL (2 ) (UAAL)

Percent
Funded

Covered
Payroll UAAL (3 )

2010 -$             $1,693,719 ($1,693,7 19) 0.00% 7,4 50,107$           22.73%
2009 -               1,721,578       (1,721,5 78)      0.00% 7,4 50,107             23.11%

(1 ) Actuarial Value of Assets
(2 ) Actuarial Accrued Liabilit y
(3 ) as a Percentage of Covered Payrol l
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 87,500$           91,092$        3,592$             
      Total revenues 87,500             91,092          3,592               

Expenditures
Capital outlay 31,100,000      11,790,268   19,309,732      
Operating contingency 74,808             -                    74,808             
      Total expenditures 31,174,808      11,790,268   19,384,540      
        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (31,087,308)     (11,699,176)  19,388,132      

Other Financing Sources
Sale of surplus property -                       398,907        398,907           

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          and other financing sources
          over (under) expenditures (31,087,308)     (11,300,269)  19,787,039      

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 31,087,308      22,153,113   (8,934,195)       
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 $                      10,852,844$ 10,852,844$    
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
 

These funds account for the accumulation of resources for particular activities or functions from 
designated sources.  Funds included in this category are: 
 

 
Special Revenue Funds 

 
Apparatus Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources for emergency service 
apparatus and vehicles 
 
Capital Improvements Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources for firefighting, 
emergency medical service, office and fire technology and other equipment 
 
Emergency Management Fund – accounts for resources used in regional emergency 
preparedness 
 
Grants Fund – accounts for the resources used for the acquisition of items approved through 
awarded grants 
 
Retiree Medical Insurance Stipend Fund – accounts for the accumulation of resources to be 
used for the payment of post-employment health benefits 
 

Debt Service Fund 
 
Debt Service Fund – accounts for payment of general obligation bond principal and interest.  
The principal source of revenue is property taxes 
 

Capital Projects Fund 
 
Property and Building Fund – accounts for the proceeds of general obligation bond issue 
and expenditures to be funded with those proceeds, such as construction costs for new and 
existing facilities 
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Apparatus Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 18,002$           9,970$          (8,032)$            
      Total revenues 18,002             9,970            (8,032)              

Expenditures
Operating contingency 500,000           -                    500,000           
      Total expenditures 500,000           -                    500,000           

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (481,998)          9,970            491,968           

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 500,000           500,000        -                       
Sales of surplus property -                       122,500        122,500           
      Total other financing sources 500,000           622,500        122,500           

        Net change in fund balances 18,002             632,470        614,468           

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 1,140,179        1,144,518     4,339               
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 1,158,181$      1,776,988$   618,807$         

728157
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Capital Improvements Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 105,656$          42,849$         (62,807)$          
      Total revenues 105,656            42,849           (62,807)            

Expenditures
Capital outlay 3,547,639         2,772,537      775,102           
Operating contingency 3,415,528         -                    3,415,528        
      Total expenditures 6,963,167         2,772,537      4,190,630        

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (6,857,511)       (2,729,688)    4,127,823        

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 2,672,209         2,672,209      -                       
Sale of surplus property -                       12,560           12,560             
      Total other financing sources 2,672,209         2,684,769      12,560             

        Net change in fund balances (4,185,302)       (44,919)         4,140,383        

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 6,400,338         6,108,620      (291,718)          
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 2,215,036$       6,063,701$    3,848,665$      
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Emergency Management Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Expenditures
Current
 Public safety:
  Personnel services 46,179$           34,184$           11,995$           
  Materials and services 9,069               2,077               6,992               
    Total expenditures 55,248             36,261             18,987             

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 55,248             36,261             (18,987)            
      Total other financing sources 55,248             36,261             (18,987)            

        Net change in fund balances -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 -                       -                       -                       
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                     -$                     -$                     
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Grants Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Grants and donations 1,380,000$      109,097$         (1,270,903)$     
      Total revenues 1,380,000        109,097           (1,270,903)       

Expenditures
Materials and services 100,000           17,000             83,000             
Capital outlay 1,600,000        92,097             1,507,903        
      Total expenditures 1,700,000        109,097           1,590,903        

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (320,000)          -                       320,000           

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 320,000           -                       320,000           
      Total other financing sources 320,000           -                       320,000           

        Net change in fund balances -                       -                       -                       

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 -                       90,554             90,554             
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                     90,554$           90,554$           
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Retiree Medical Insurance Stipend Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 2,716$             1,370$             (1,346)$            
      Total revenues 2,716               1,370               (1,346)              

Expenditures
Current   
Personnel services 110,103           80,514             29,589             
      Total expenditures 110,103           80,514             29,589             

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (107,387)          (79,144)            28,243             

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 83,285             83,285             -                       
      Total other financing sources 83,285             83,285             -                       

        Net change in fund balances (24,102)            4,141               28,243             

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 201,275           211,273           9,998               
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 177,173$         215,414$         38,241$           
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Taxes 4,448,084$      4,564,032$      115,948$         
Interest 14,700             12,570             (2,130)              
      Total revenues 4,462,784        4,576,602        113,818           

Expenditures
Debt service:  
  Principal 2,115,000        2,115,000        -                       
  Interest 1,798,181        1,798,179        2                      
      Total expenditures 3,913,181        3,913,179        2                      

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)        
expenditures and net change in fund balances 549,603           663,423           113,820           

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 319,734           544,418           224,684           
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 869,337$         1,207,841$      338,504$         
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Property and Building Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 90,118$           42,018$       (48,100)$          
      Total revenues 90,118             42,018         (48,100)            

Expenditures
Capital outlay 699,300           419,261       280,039           
Operating contingency 7,950,232        -                   7,950,232        
      Total expenditures 8,649,532        419,261       8,230,271        

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (8,559,414)       (377,243)      8,182,171        

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 1,350,000        1,350,000    -                       
      Total other financing sources 1,350,000        1,350,000    -                       

        Net change in fund balances (7,209,414)       972,757       8,182,171        

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 7,209,414        5,959,548    (1,249,866)       
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                     6,932,305$  6,932,305$      
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Insurance Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Interest 8,482$             4,424$             (4,058)$            
Insurance refunds 18,000             5,547               (12,453)            
      Total revenues 26,482             9,971               (16,511)            

Expenditures
Materials and services 705,002           42,869             662,133           
      Total expenditures 705,002           42,869             662,133           

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures and
          net change in fund balances (678,520)          (32,898)            645,622           

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 678,520           684,823           6,303               
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                     651,925$         651,925$         
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

Pension
Trust
Fund

Volunteer
LOSAP
Fund

Total
Fiduciary

Funds
Assets
   Cash and cash equivalents 2,191$             401,303$         403,494$         
   Investments, mutual funds at fair value 399,857           399,857           
      Total assets 2,191               801,160           803,351           

Net Assets
      Held in trust for pension benefits 2,191$            801,160$        803,351$        
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Pension
Trust
Fund

Volunteer
LOSAP
Fund

Total
Fiduciary

Funds
Additions
Contributions:
  Employer 39,274$           39,274$           
Miscellaneous 363$                5,253               5,616               

Investment earnings: 351                  51,073             51,424             
         Total additions 714                  95,600             96,314             

Deductions
  Benefits 351,748           32,375             384,123           
         Total deductions 351,748           32,375             384,123           

       Change in net assets (351,034)          63,225             (287,809)          

Total net assets, July 1, 2009 353,225           737,935           1,091,160        
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 2,191$             801,160$         803,351$         
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Pension Trust Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Budget Amounts Actual

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues
Investment earnings 351$             351$                 351$                 -$                  
Miscellaneous -                    -                       363                   363                   
      Total revenues 351               351                   714                   363                   

Expenditures
Personnel services 348,806        352,306           351,748           558                   
Materials and services 5,000            1,500                -                       1,500                
      Total expenditures 353,806        353,806           351,748           2,058                

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures and
          net change in fund balances (353,455)       (353,455)          (351,034)          2,421                

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 353,455        353,455           353,225           (230)                  
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                  -$                     2,191$             2,191$              
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Volunteer LOSAP Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Original and
Final Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget - 

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues
Investment earnings 674$                51,073$           50,399$           
Miscellaneous 5,253               5,253               
      Total revenues 674                  56,326             55,652             

Expenditures
Personnel services 714,266           32,375             681,891           
      Total expenditures 714,266           32,375             681,891           

        Excess (deficiency) of revenues
          over (under) expenditures (713,592)          23,951             737,543           

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 39,274             39,274             -                       
      Total other financing sources 39,274             39,274             -                       

        Net change in fund balances (674,318)          63,225             737,543           

Fund balance - July 1, 2009 674,318           737,935           63,617             
Fund balance - June 30, 2010 -$                     801,160$         801,160$         
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Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions and Outstanding Balances

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Taxes Add (Deduct) Taxes
Uncollected Add Levy as (Deduct) Add Cancellations Uncollected

June 30, Extended by Discounts Interest and (Deduct) June 30,
Tax Year 2009 Assessor Allowed Received Adjustments Collections 2010

2009-10 -                        74,662,973$    (1,862,629)$    27,042$           (223,087)$       (70,399,625)$   2,204,674$     

2008-09 2,293,868$      2,292 85,410 (107,363) (1,425,525) 848,682
2007-08 617,046 844 46,774 (42,534) (306,649) 315,481
2006-07 217,762 321 32,837 (19,579) (147,203) 84,138
2005-06 61,971 227 12,461 (8,422) (47,126) 19,111
2004-05 24,258 160 2,357 (7,100) (3,135) 16,540
2003-04 and prior 37,658 89 (742) (6,673) (1,347) 28,984

 
 

      Total prior 3,252,563 3,933 179,097 (191,671) (1,930,985) 1,312,936

      Total 3,252,563$      74,662,973$    (1,858,696)$    206,139$         (414,758)$       (72,330,610)$   3,517,610$     

Debt
General Service

Fund Fund Total
Reconciliation to tax revenues on
    combined financial statements:
  Property tax collections above 67,779,219$   4,551,391$      72,330,610$   
  Property taxes susceptible to accrual 
      at June 30, 2010 461,125  27,274 488,399
  Property taxes susceptible to accrual
      at June 30, 2009 (378,482) (14,732) (393,214)
  Taxes in lieu of property taxes 5,512 99 5,611

        Tax revenues 67,867,374$   4,564,032$      72,431,406$   

Taxes in Taxes
Lieu of Uncollected

Current Prior Property June 30,
Levy Years Taxes Total 2010

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:
  General Fund 66,235,696$   1,626,166$     5,512$             67,867,374$    3,326,015$     
  Debt Service Fund 4,499,379 64,554 99 4,564,032 191,595

      Total 70,735,075$   1,690,720$     5,611$             72,431,406$    3,517,610$     

Property Taxes
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Statistical Section 

 
 

This part of the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the District’s overall financial health. 
 

Contents    Page   
 
Financial Trends  91  
 These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 

District’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity  95 
 These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 

significant local revenue source, the property tax. 
 
Debt Capacity  99 
 These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 

District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional 
debt in the future. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information 102 
 These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 

understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating Information  104 
 These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 

the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District 
provides and the activities it performs. 

 
 Sources 
 Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual 

financial reports for the relevant year. The District implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules 
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year. 
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